
 1 

 

 
 

PROPOSED AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE LAKE ODESSA VILLAGE COUNCIL 

February 17, 2020 - 7:00 P.M. 
Page Memorial Building 

Village Council Chambers 
839 Fourth Avenue, Lake Odessa, Michigan 48849 

 
I. Call to Order 

 
II. Pledge of Allegiance 

 
III. Roll Call 

 
IV. Approval of Agenda 

 
V. Citizen Comment on Agenda Items: 

Under the Open Meetings Act, any citizen may come forward at this time and make comment on 
items that appear on the agenda.  Comments will be limited to five minutes per person.  Anyone who 
would like to speak shall state his/her name and address for the record.  Remarks should be confined 
to the question at hand and addressed to the chair in a courteous tone.  No person shall have the right 
to speak more than once on any particular subject until all other persons wishing to be heard on that 
subject have had the opportunity to speak. 

 
VI. Minutes:  To approve regular meeting minutes for December 16, 2019 meeting minutes 

 
VII. Bills: 

a) Approve bills equal to or less than $3,000.00 each from 1/1//2020 to 1/31/2020 
b) Approve bills in excess of $3,000.00 each, including: 
  

1. GEI Consultants – Street Project Engineering -- $5,650.00 (Paid) 
2. Homeworks/ Tri-County Electric Cooperative – $3,264.08 – Water Plant Electricity (Paid)  
3. Signature Ford -- $33,809.00 – 2020 Ford Police Interceptor (Paid) 
4. D&K Truck Co. -- $80,38.00 – 2021 Freightliner 108SD Cab and Chassis (Paid) 
5. Alta Equipment Company -- $9,795.00 – Snow Plow for DPW Pickup (Paid) 

 
VIII. Consent Agenda 

The following consent agenda will normally be adopted without discussion; however, at the request of 
any council member, any item may be removed from the consent agenda for discussion. 
 
Reports and Minutes:  To accept and file the following: 
 
a) Lake Odessa Zoning Administrator Monthly Report 



 2 

b) Lake Odessa Community Library Meeting Minutes – November 2019 
c) Village Monthly Fuel Purchases 

 
IX. Departmental Reports: 

a) Village Manager’s Report 
b) Police Department 
c) Department of Public Works  
d) Finance Report  

X. Committee Reports 
a)   Personnel / Finance Committee 
b) Recreation / Special Projects Committee 

 
XI. Presentations 

a)  Mark Stoor – GEI Consultants – Proposed Ionia, Pearl, Pleasant, and Emerson Street 
Improvement Project 

 
XII. Discussion Items 

a)         None 
 

XIII. Public Hearing 
a) 2020-2021 Fiscal Year Budget Public Hearing – The property tax millage rate  
           proposed to be levied to support the proposed budget will be a subject of this      
           hearing. 

 
XIV. Unfinished Business  

a)         None 
 
XV. New Business: 

a) Proposed Resolution 2020-06: Approving, Authorizing, and Directing the Village President 
and the Village Manager to Sign a Letter of Engagement from Walker, Fluke, and Sheldon 
PLC for Auditing Services for the Village of Lake Odessa 
 

b) Proposed Resolution 2020-07: Approving the Recognition of the Lake Odessa Civic and 
Agricultural Association as a Nonprofit Organization Operating in the Community for the 
Purpose of Obtaining Charitable Gaming Licenses 
 

c) Proposed Resolution 2020-08: Approving the Annual Support of the Ionia County Economic 
Alliance (ICEA) in the Amount of $1,924.00 
 

d) Proposed Resolution 2020-09: Approving the Village President’s Appointment List as 
Presented for Various Village Posts, Boards, and Commissions 
 

e) Proposed Resolution 2020-10: Approving the Quote for Police Car Outfitting Services  
 

f) Proposed Resolution 2020-11: Approving the Estimate and Bid Letting for the Proposed Pearl, 
Pleasant, Ionia, and Emerson Street Improvement Project 
 



 3 

g) Proposed Resolution 2020-12: Adoption of the Proposed Fiscal Year 2020-2021 Budget for 
the Village of Lake Odessa 

 
h) Proposed Resolution 2020-13: Approval and Adoption of the Village of Lake Odessa General 

Appropriations Act 
 

i) Proposed Resolution 2020-14: Approval and Adoption of the Village of Lake Odessa Capital 
Improvement Plan 
 

j) Proposed Resolution 2020-15: Approval to Adopt the Village of Lake Odessa Employee 
Deferred Compensation Plan for FY 2020-2021 
 

k) Approval of Proposed Budget Amendments as Submitted 
 

XVI. Miscellaneous Correspondence: 
a)    Habitat for Humanity – Ribbon Cutting and Open House – Sunday, February 23, 2020 
 

XVII. Trustee Comments 
 

XVIII. Public Comment 
 

XIX. Adjournment 



   

VILLAGE OF LAKE ODESSA 
 

MINUTES 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 

January 21, 2020 (DRAFT) 
PAGE MEMORIAL BUILDING 

 
Meeting called to order at 7:00 pm by President Banks. 
Pledge of Allegiance. 
Council present:   Karen Banks, Mike Brighton, Kay Hartzler, Charles Jaquays, Mel McCloud, Brandy Walkington, 
Mike Rudisill 
Absent: None 
Staff present: Patrick Reagan, Jesse Trout, Kendra Backing, Pearl Ward 
Visitors present:  Daryl Hartzler, L. Adams, Carolyn Mayhew, Heidi Reed, Bruce Estes, Al Klein 
Jessica Courtright, Carrie Johnson. 
 
Motion by McCloud support by Walkington to approve the agenda as presented.  Motion carried.  
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
Carolyn Mayhew with the Jordan Lake Trail had questions regarding the incorporation articles and inquired about 
the proposed timeline for the Lakewood Recreational Authority appointments.  Banks stated that the articles of 
incorporation would be voted upon and appointments made after adoption.  Mayhew expressed concerns about the 
timeline of the grant process.   
 
MINUTES 
Motion by Rudisill, support by Brighton to approve minutes of December 16, 2019.  Motion carried. 
 
BILLS 
Motion by McCloud, support by Hartzler to approve expenditures equal to or less than $3,000.00 for the period 
12/1/2019 thru 12/31/2019.  Motion carried.  
 
Motion by Rudisill, support by Hartzler to approve payment of invoices in excess of $3,000.00 items as follows:  

1. SLC Meter LLC - $5,620.64 – Purchase of Water Meters (paid) 
 
Motion carried.   
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
Motion by McCloud, support by Rudisill to approve the consent agenda, as follows:  

1. Lake Odessa Zoning Administrator Monthly Report 
2. Lake Odessa Downtown Development Authority Minutes – November 2019 

Motion carried.  
 
DEPARTMENTAL REPORTS 
Manager’s Report:  Reagan discussed New Business items on the agenda.   
Police Report:  Backing had nothing additional to report. 
Finance: Nothing to report 
DPW:  Nothing additional to report. 
COMMITTEE REPORTS: 
Personnel/Finance Committee:  There was no update.     
Recreation/Special Projects Committee:  There was no update.    
 



VILLAGE OF LAKE ODESSA 
JANUARY 21, 2020 COUNCIL MINUTES, PAGE 2 

PRESENTATIONS 
There were no presentations.    
 
DISCUSSION ITEMS 
There were no discussion items.   
 
NEW BUSINESS 
Motion made by McCloud, supported by Brighton to adopt Resolution 2020-01:  Approving the Appointment of 
Meg Wheeler to the Planning Commission.  Motion carried with the following roll call vote:  Yes:  McCloud, 
Jaquays, Hartzler, Brighton, Rudisill, Walkington, Banks; No: None.   
 
Motion by Brighton, supported by Walkington to approve Resolution 2020-02: Approving the Setting of a Public 
Hearing on the FY 2020-2021 Village Budget. Motion carried with the following roll call vote:  Yes:  McCloud, 
Jaquays, Hartzler, Brighton, Rudisill, Walkington, Banks; No: None.   
 
Motion by McCloud, supported by Rudisill to approve Resolution 2020-03: Approval and Acceptance of the 
Proposed Lakewood Recreational Authority’s Articles of Incorporation. Motion carried with the following roll call 
vote:  Yes:  McCloud, Jaquays, Hartzler, Brighton, Rudisill, Walkington, Banks; No: None.   
 
Jaquays nominated Patrick Reagan and McCloud nominated Jaquays to the Lakewood Recreational Authority.   
 
Motion by Banks, support by Jaquays to a three-year term on the Lakewood Recreational Authority.  Motion 
carried.   
 
Motion by Brighton, support by Walkington to a two-year term on the Lakewood Recreational Authority.  Motion 
carried.   
 
Motion by Brighton, supported by Hatrzler to approve Resolution 2020-04: Approving the Purchase of a 2020 Ford 
Police Interceptor AWD from through the MiDeal program for the Village’s Police Department. Jaquays expressed 
concern over purchasing another gas guzzling vehicle and saw very little need for two four-wheel drive vehicles and 
did not agree with purchasing an Interceptor and could save $5,000.  McCloud stated he drove back and forth to 
Lansing without four-wheel drive and stated he could not justify having a four-wheel drive vehicle.  Motion carried 
with the following roll call vote:  Yes:  Hartzler, Brighton, Rudisill, Walkington, Banks; No: McCloud, Jaquays.   
 
Motion by Brighton, supported by Rudisill to approve Resolution 2020-05: Approving the Purchase of Six (6) 
Motorola APX Series Radios for Use by the Police Department. McCloud inquired why 6 radios were to be 
purchased.  Backing explained the need for back-up radios for officers and stated they are also needed for special 
events.  Motion carried with the following roll call vote:  Yes:  McCloud, Jaquays, Hartzler, Brighton, Rudisill, 
Walkington, Banks; No: None.   
 
Motion by McCloud, supported by Brighton to approve the Budget Amendments as submitted. All ayes, motion 
passed. 
 
TRUSTEE COMMENTS 
Brighton had no comment. 
 
Rudisll had no comment.  
 
Walkington stated that she appreciated the DPW and Police reports. 
 
McCloud stated Happy Valentines Day.   



VILLAGE OF LAKE ODESSA 
JANUARY 21, 2020 COUNCIL MINUTES, PAGE 3 

 
Jaquays had no comment.  
 
Hartzler complimented Ward for her work for the village and stated she appreciated Trout and the DPW’s work in 
the village.  Hartzler complimented and thanked the evening officer for his service in the village.   
 
Banks agreed with Hartzler’s comments and reminded everyone of the budget workshop on February 10 at 6:30pm.  
Banks also informed council that the Ionia County Commissioner’s selected Banks to replace her husband’s position 
with the Ionia County Board of Commissioners and stated she intended to fulfill both roles as County Commissioner 
and Village President.  Banks explained that a legal opinion was obtained and there was no conflict of interest.   
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
There was no public comment.   
 
Motion by Rudisill, support by Walkington to adjourn the meeting at 7:36pm. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Pearl Ward 
Village Clerk 
 
 



















1 
 

 
 

Lake Odessa Village  
 

Zoning Administrator Report  
 

January 2020 
 

Permits: 
 
None 
 
 
Supplemental: 
 
None 
 
 
Miscellaneous 
Phone calls involved various appraisers checking on the zoning classification of assorted parcels.  
Other questions involved various questions regarding setbacks, fences, pools and permits. 
 
A representative of the company NV5 contacted me to gather information about 935/937 Fourth 
Ave.  I believe this may be a financing company.  They had extensive questions on zoning 
compliance, if code violations, certificates of occupancy, etc.  Some of the questions I referred the 
representative to the County.  Pearl assisted in gathering the info and I sent the results of the 
questions back to them in early February. 
 
The owners of 1015 First Ave are planning to apply for a variance to replace their front porch with 
a larger porch.  I have met with them several times and tried to find a way for them to do this but 
none of the flexible methods will work as the porch is in the setback and the street is not in the 
center of the right of way. 
 
It has been a slow month. 
 



Lake Odessa Community Library Board Meeting 

November 20, 2019 

 
1. Meeting called to order by Pepper at 7:00pm.  

a. Present: Pepper, Deardorff, Jarvie, Miller, Spitzley, Beglin, Beard, Director Salgat 
b. Absent: Goodemoot  

2. Public Comment: None. 
3. Motion by Miller, support by Beard, to approve the agenda as written. Ayes all. Carried. 
4. The minutes from the October 23, 2019 meeting were reviewed.  Motion by Deardorff, 

support by Jarvie, to approve the meeting minutes as written.  Ayes all.  Carried.                                                                                                                                                                                
5. The treasurer’s report was reviewed. Motion by Miller, support by Spitzley, to approve and 

pay the monthly bills. Ayes all. Carried. 
6. Director’s Report:  

a. The “Quiet Room” is now being constructed, and the Friends have agreed to fund 
the project. The room is anticipated to be finished by the beginning of the new year. 
Three of the staff have a reduced schedule, by choice; therefore, two college 
students will be available to fill in when needed. Lakeland is considering purchasing 
an app service that allows a patron to self check-out using their phone. The cost of 
the app is $2000. 

7. Old Business: Employee Manual - Approved as it is currently written.  
8. New Business: 

a. Policy Review: Bulletin Board and Brochures 
i. Reviewed without changes. 

b. Policy Review: Capitalization 
i. Reviewed without changes. 

c. Policy Review: Credit Card 
i. Motion by Miller, support by Deardorff, to change credit card policy as 

presented to item (G). Ayes all. Carried. 
d. Policy Review: Meeting Room Policy with Added Quiet Room 

i. Motion by Deardorff, support by Miller, to adopt the Friends Quiet Room 

Policy, as a stand alone policy, as written. Ayes all. Carried.  
e. Review Library and Board Calendars -  

i. Motion by Jarvie, support by Beard, to approve the Board Calendar of 
Meeting Dates as presented. Ayes all. Carried.  

ii. Library closure dates reviewed.  
f. Appoint members of Salary Committee 

i. Employee Compensation Committee will now include Kathy Jarvie, Kim 
Deardorff, and Cherith Goodemoot.  

g. Staff Gifts 
i. List of Christmas gifts reviewed and approved.  

9. Friends of the Library 
a. Tea Time Report - 20 people signed up to attend and details are beginning for next 

year.  
b. Christmas decorating at the library - On November 25th decorating will begin.  

10.  Motion by Beard, support by Deardorff, to adjourn the meeting at 8:27pm. Ayes all. 
Carried.  





1  

REPORT TO THE VILLAGE OF LAKE ODESSA COUNCIL 
 
DATE Tuesday, February 17, 2020 
TO: President Karen Banks; Vice-President Mel McCloud; Trustee 
Brighton; Trustee Rudisill; Trustee Jaquays; Trustee Walkington; Trustee 
Hartzler 
 
FROM: Patrick Reagan, Village Manager  
 
RE: Manager's Report to Village Council 
 
President Banks and Village Council Members, 
 
Please find below my report on the Council agenda before you tonight. 
 
Presentations 
 
Mark Stoor, the Village’s Engineer, will be reviewing the design and costs for the 
proposed street and infrastructure improvements proposed for Pearl, Pleasant, 
Ionia, and Emerson for this summer. As you know, these streets – and the 
infrastructure below – are in desperate need of repair. The funds for this work will 
be allocated from Major Streets, Local Streets, General Highway, and from the 
Water Funds. These repairs have been on past iterations of the Capital 
Improvement Plan for some time now and Village staff has been saving in these 
funds for this project. These funds each have very healthy fund balances and will 
continue to at the conclusion of this project. 
 
Public Hearing 
 
A public hearing has been scheduled for the proposed 2020-2021 FY Budget as 
well as the proposed tax millage rates. This has been published in the local 
newspaper per the direction of the Village Council. 
 
New Business 
 
Proposed Resolution 2020-06: Approving, Authorizing, and Directing the 
Village President and the Village Manager to Sign a Letter of Engagement 



2  

from Walker, Fluke, and Sheldon PLC for Auditing Services for the Village of 
Lake Odessa 
 
This resolution approves the signing of the letter of engagement sent to us by our 
auditors. Village staff has appreciated the work done in the past by Walker, Fluke, 
Sheldon PLC and recommends that the Village continue working with the same 
auditors for the 2019-2020 report as required by state statute.  
 
Proposed Resolution 2020-07: Approving the Recognition of the Lake Odessa 
Civic and Agricultural Association as a Nonprofit Organization Operating in 
the Community for the Purpose of Obtaining Charitable Gaming Licenses 
 
The Lake Odessa Fair is seeking to obtain a charitable gaming license from the 
State of Michigan to hold a raffle on June 27 as part of the Fair. Per the State 
Bureau of Lottery, the first step in the licensing process is to obtain recognition 
from the local governing body of their existence as a nonprofit organization 
operating within the community. I recommend that this resolution be passed. 
 
Proposed Resolution 2020-08: Approving the Annual Support of the Ionia 
County Economic Alliance (ICEA) in the Amount of $1,924.00 
 
This resolution approves the continuation of support from the Village to the Ionia 
County Economic Chamber Alliance. The Village has supported the ICEA for 
years and I recommend that this support continue. 
 
Proposed Resolution 2020-09: Approving the Village President’s Appointment 
List as Presented for Various Village Posts, Boards, and Commissions 
 
Proposed Resolution 2020-10: Approving the Quote for Police Car Outfitting 
Services 
 
Kendra and I met with two businesses – Mid Michigan Emergency Equipment and 
Jayme Fazi from Pro Comm for the outfitting of the 2020 Police Interceptor 
vehicle. Kendra and I are waiting for the quotes and will have a recommendation 
for Council ready for this meeting. 
 
Proposed Resolution 2020-11: Approving the Estimate and Bid Letting for the 
Proposed Pearl, Pleasant, Ionia, and Emerson Street Improvement Project 
 



3  

Village staff has been working with Mark Stoor, from GEI Consultants, on the 
proposed street and infrastructure work on Pearl, Pleasant, Ionia, and Emerson for 
this summer. Mark will be going over the project during presentations. The 
estimated cost of this project is $1,308,600.00. As stated before, the funding for 
this project will be from the Major Streets Fund, the Local Streets Fund, the 
General Highway Fund, and from the Water Fund. Village staff has been 
anticipating this project for years and has been setting funds aside for this work. 
Due to this diligence and good planning by the DPW Supervisor and the Finance 
Officer, these funds have not only the capacity to pay for this project but will still 
have very healthy fund balances after the project has been completed.  
 
This resolution accepts the proposed current estimate and will allow the Village to 
move forward by letting the project out for bid, with the understanding that we will 
receive bids for this work very soon. This will allow the Village to proceed with 
this work this summer. I recommend that this resolution be passed. 
 
Proposed Resolution 2020-12: Adoption of the Proposed Fiscal Year 2020-
2021 Budget for the Village of Lake Odessa 
 
Please find attached to this resolution a copy of the completed budget. I would like 
to thank each of the Council members that attended our workshop on Monday, 
February 10, 2020. I would also like to acknowledge the hard work of our 
Department Heads, especially our Finance Director, Pearl Ward, for their 
outstanding work.  
 
While this budget is fully detailed, it needs to be pointed out that this is a balanced 
budget as the Village has very healthy fund balances that will allow us to perform a 
much-needed street improvement project (Pearl, Pleasant, Ionia, and a portion of 
Emerson Street) this summer. The healthy fund balances are due to excellent 
financial management in years past by the Village Council, the Village’s Finance 
Director, and by sound decision making from Village Department Heads. While 
many Michigan communities are struggling with burdensome pensions and 
tremendous OPEB obligations – which ultimately restricts the projects and 
priorities of communities and cuts back on things like public safety, maintenance, 
and repairs that can be performed -- Lake Odessa is not. This is not luck, nor is it 
an accident or mere happenstance – excellent decision making and planning is the 
reason that Lake Odessa’s financial situation is in very good shape.  
 
Proposed Resolution 2020-13: Approval and Adoption of the Village of Lake 
Odessa General Appropriations Act 



4  

Proposed Resolution 2020-14: Approval and Adoption of the Village of Lake 
Odessa Capital Improvement Plan 
 
This plan sets forth the proposed capital improvements for the coming years. 
Please note that as situations, needs, and opportunities arise, this plan is a 
guidepost and is not set in stone.  

 
Proposed Resolution 2020-15: Approval to Adopt the Village of Lake Odessa 
Employee Deferred Compensation Plan for FY 2020-2021 
 
This resolution continues the deferred compensation plan for the coming fiscal 
year. 
 
Approval of Proposed Budget Amendments as Submitted 
 
 
Items of Note 
 

◼ Please remember that overnight parking restrictions are from November 1, 
2019 and end on April 1, 2019. No parking is allowed on Village Streets 
between 2:00 am and 6:00 am between these dates. 

◼ I encourage you to read the reports from my staff as they have excellent 
information contained within them.  

◼ Habitat for Humanity will be hosting a ribbon cutting ceremony at 1518 
Fourth Avenue on February 23, 2020. 
 
 

Respectfully submitted, 

Patrick Reagan, Village Manager  
Village of Lake Odessa 



 

 

January 2020 MONTHLY REPORT 

 
The Lake Odessa Police Department handled 46 calls for service for the month of January, 
Attended 3 Public Relations events, Conducted 31 Traffic Stops, Issued 8 Citations and 39 
Warnings, Effected 2 arrests, Issued 0 Parking Tickets, 2 Ordinance Violation Citations, Handled 
7 Property Damage Accidents, 49619 2016 Chevy Tahoe Mileage, 82810 2012 Chevy Impala 
Mileage. 
 
CALLS FOR SERVICE: 

(7) Property Damage Accident           (2) Animal Complaint                  (3) Suspicious Situation/Person           
(2) Domestic Assault                            (2) Larceny                                    Sex Offender Registration   
(2) Threats/Harassment                      (2) Obstructing Justice                Trespass                                                                            
(2) Civil Dispute                                    (2) Assault                                      Suspicious Odor  
(2) Medical Assist                                 Alarm                                              Reckless Driver  
(3) Assist Outside Agency                   Motorist Assist                              OWI                  
(3)) Misd.Traffic Offense                     Illegal Dumping                             Criminal Sexual Conduct 
(2) Lock Outs                                         Open Door                                     Welfare Check, Ordinance Violation 



Community Policing  
Chief Backing was invited by Superintendent of Schools, Randall Fleenor, to attend the Lakewood Public 
Schools Stategic Planning retreat held on Saturday, January 25th at the Lakewood High School. Various 
school stafff and community stakeholers were present and worked together to review student and 
financial data. These collaboartive conisderations enhance overall relations, communications and place 
focus on safety and security goals for our community.  
 

 

 



OFFICER TRAINING 
Officer Boot attended Courtroom Testimony which prepares officers to be confident witnesses in court, and 
highlights the most common defense traps and pitfalls during cross exmanations. This training allows for officers to 
gain hands on experience from role playing hypothetical case scenerios. 
 
Officers attended Suicide Awareness training, “safeTalk”,  hosted by the Right Door in Ionia Michigan. This training 
program focused on assisting the audience memebers with identifying persons with thoughts of suicide and 
commecting them  to suicide resouces. The ‘safe’ of “safeTalk” stands for “suicide alertness for everyone”. The 
‘Talk’ letters stand for the practice actions that one does to help those with thoughts of suicide; Tell, Ask, Listen, 
and Keep Safe.  

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
Joint team building meetings have been on going with the Ionia County Sheriffs Department, Ionia 
County Central Dispatch, and our department concerning our new software, Central Square. We are in 
the very beginnings of the building process and working closely with the point of contacts from Central 
Square to tailor the software to our needs.  

 
 



Community Relations 

Chief Backing assited the Lions Club at their Annual Pancake Supper held at St. Edwards church on January 26, 

2020. Officer Boot posed with two Lakewood High School students who were also there promoting The Strive for A 

Safer Drive (S4SD) program which seeks to reduce traffic crashes among teens.  

 

 

 



 
Community Relations 

 
Members of Cub Scout Pack 3396 got an opportunity to meet Officer Tollefson at their January meeting. 
Officer Tollefson answered various questions concerning community and teamwork matters to assist them in 
earning their Community Badge they are working towards. 
 
 

 
 



 
 

ORDINANACE ENFORCEMENT 
 

‼️❄️‼️ Remember to shovel your sidewalk and fire hydrants ‼️❄️‼️ A clearly visible and accessible fire 
hydrant could save your home and life! People use sidewalks on a daily basis; children, the elderly, 
walkers/runners, those pushing strollers and using wheel chairs, etc. People depend on them all year 

long! Thank you for your help and attention to this ‼️❄️‼️ 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 

https://www.facebook.com/1686723514895730/photos/pcb.2550559638512109/2550554525179287/?type=3&__tn__=HH-R&eid=ARDAFMQ3MBHX12R7aPLUC-JXCRFqzmRjWA_6BbDqujNqXTeFiYQgfU9SUpnjqYGdyP2n6GCC-w0JkWNy&__xts__%5B0%5D=68.ARBm9rD8H4YluCJnwxOqNObA0ue16CCyhSQyme8lE9kUHSU6o9fERyRxOJjqZOsQ1qSlhxq0QLELBOTvBeycGGCg4q5i0yJw-rh0pxUSaWuk4QiUvL3_6BCSXIB3vtHZPT2IcmvXI1clFgSEKjQV_1sExy7M9QHFA9MWcpwao97aNOwNbIhnjIRYsXVQxRgHlbt6Pn37hbQixZIJWcKHCUOQ_peBHL7L3lonAcwyrQrYXXs9xyBRg3yHeVijt-lDd6DNDx5kVACu6flRpZOL5GxolTN0knt7l0cyJNhkDfiytakkOhlNc53OuR1JE0KJbnhUWnlEqPqmQvgtoMxv4TBg5tbq
https://www.facebook.com/1686723514895730/photos/pcb.2550559638512109/2550554525179287/?type=3&__tn__=HH-R&eid=ARDAFMQ3MBHX12R7aPLUC-JXCRFqzmRjWA_6BbDqujNqXTeFiYQgfU9SUpnjqYGdyP2n6GCC-w0JkWNy&__xts__%5B0%5D=68.ARBm9rD8H4YluCJnwxOqNObA0ue16CCyhSQyme8lE9kUHSU6o9fERyRxOJjqZOsQ1qSlhxq0QLELBOTvBeycGGCg4q5i0yJw-rh0pxUSaWuk4QiUvL3_6BCSXIB3vtHZPT2IcmvXI1clFgSEKjQV_1sExy7M9QHFA9MWcpwao97aNOwNbIhnjIRYsXVQxRgHlbt6Pn37hbQixZIJWcKHCUOQ_peBHL7L3lonAcwyrQrYXXs9xyBRg3yHeVijt-lDd6DNDx5kVACu6flRpZOL5GxolTN0knt7l0cyJNhkDfiytakkOhlNc53OuR1JE0KJbnhUWnlEqPqmQvgtoMxv4TBg5tbq
https://www.facebook.com/1686723514895730/photos/pcb.2550559638512109/2550554561845950/?type=3&__tn__=HH-R&eid=ARDDyFdg-ZMKdsYPyOwk27uG5xBBUAujkcOeoISfZkGD_LDi09mz5qRF6zeUo6O9O8jOmJIH-GMPvGP0&__xts__%5B0%5D=68.ARBm9rD8H4YluCJnwxOqNObA0ue16CCyhSQyme8lE9kUHSU6o9fERyRxOJjqZOsQ1qSlhxq0QLELBOTvBeycGGCg4q5i0yJw-rh0pxUSaWuk4QiUvL3_6BCSXIB3vtHZPT2IcmvXI1clFgSEKjQV_1sExy7M9QHFA9MWcpwao97aNOwNbIhnjIRYsXVQxRgHlbt6Pn37hbQixZIJWcKHCUOQ_peBHL7L3lonAcwyrQrYXXs9xyBRg3yHeVijt-lDd6DNDx5kVACu6flRpZOL5GxolTN0knt7l0cyJNhkDfiytakkOhlNc53OuR1JE0KJbnhUWnlEqPqmQvgtoMxv4TBg5tbq
https://www.facebook.com/1686723514895730/photos/pcb.2550559638512109/2550554561845950/?type=3&__tn__=HH-R&eid=ARDDyFdg-ZMKdsYPyOwk27uG5xBBUAujkcOeoISfZkGD_LDi09mz5qRF6zeUo6O9O8jOmJIH-GMPvGP0&__xts__%5B0%5D=68.ARBm9rD8H4YluCJnwxOqNObA0ue16CCyhSQyme8lE9kUHSU6o9fERyRxOJjqZOsQ1qSlhxq0QLELBOTvBeycGGCg4q5i0yJw-rh0pxUSaWuk4QiUvL3_6BCSXIB3vtHZPT2IcmvXI1clFgSEKjQV_1sExy7M9QHFA9MWcpwao97aNOwNbIhnjIRYsXVQxRgHlbt6Pn37hbQixZIJWcKHCUOQ_peBHL7L3lonAcwyrQrYXXs9xyBRg3yHeVijt-lDd6DNDx5kVACu6flRpZOL5GxolTN0knt7l0cyJNhkDfiytakkOhlNc53OuR1JE0KJbnhUWnlEqPqmQvgtoMxv4TBg5tbq
https://www.facebook.com/1686723514895730/photos/pcb.2550559638512109/2550554601845946/?type=3&__tn__=HH-R&eid=ARB5-RlgOFGxfka8pqtF5JHfRPp_tHQIsV8NZ-gw9QqDF59pauen9pcY0xlgFeT-jtsAd_gB-16IvkAV&__xts__%5B0%5D=68.ARBm9rD8H4YluCJnwxOqNObA0ue16CCyhSQyme8lE9kUHSU6o9fERyRxOJjqZOsQ1qSlhxq0QLELBOTvBeycGGCg4q5i0yJw-rh0pxUSaWuk4QiUvL3_6BCSXIB3vtHZPT2IcmvXI1clFgSEKjQV_1sExy7M9QHFA9MWcpwao97aNOwNbIhnjIRYsXVQxRgHlbt6Pn37hbQixZIJWcKHCUOQ_peBHL7L3lonAcwyrQrYXXs9xyBRg3yHeVijt-lDd6DNDx5kVACu6flRpZOL5GxolTN0knt7l0cyJNhkDfiytakkOhlNc53OuR1JE0KJbnhUWnlEqPqmQvgtoMxv4TBg5tbq
https://www.facebook.com/1686723514895730/photos/pcb.2550559638512109/2550554601845946/?type=3&__tn__=HH-R&eid=ARB5-RlgOFGxfka8pqtF5JHfRPp_tHQIsV8NZ-gw9QqDF59pauen9pcY0xlgFeT-jtsAd_gB-16IvkAV&__xts__%5B0%5D=68.ARBm9rD8H4YluCJnwxOqNObA0ue16CCyhSQyme8lE9kUHSU6o9fERyRxOJjqZOsQ1qSlhxq0QLELBOTvBeycGGCg4q5i0yJw-rh0pxUSaWuk4QiUvL3_6BCSXIB3vtHZPT2IcmvXI1clFgSEKjQV_1sExy7M9QHFA9MWcpwao97aNOwNbIhnjIRYsXVQxRgHlbt6Pn37hbQixZIJWcKHCUOQ_peBHL7L3lonAcwyrQrYXXs9xyBRg3yHeVijt-lDd6DNDx5kVACu6flRpZOL5GxolTN0knt7l0cyJNhkDfiytakkOhlNc53OuR1JE0KJbnhUWnlEqPqmQvgtoMxv4TBg5tbq
https://www.facebook.com/1686723514895730/photos/pcb.2550559638512109/2550554525179287/?type=3&__tn__=HH-R&eid=ARDAFMQ3MBHX12R7aPLUC-JXCRFqzmRjWA_6BbDqujNqXTeFiYQgfU9SUpnjqYGdyP2n6GCC-w0JkWNy&__xts__%5B0%5D=68.ARBm9rD8H4YluCJnwxOqNObA0ue16CCyhSQyme8lE9kUHSU6o9fERyRxOJjqZOsQ1qSlhxq0QLELBOTvBeycGGCg4q5i0yJw-rh0pxUSaWuk4QiUvL3_6BCSXIB3vtHZPT2IcmvXI1clFgSEKjQV_1sExy7M9QHFA9MWcpwao97aNOwNbIhnjIRYsXVQxRgHlbt6Pn37hbQixZIJWcKHCUOQ_peBHL7L3lonAcwyrQrYXXs9xyBRg3yHeVijt-lDd6DNDx5kVACu6flRpZOL5GxolTN0knt7l0cyJNhkDfiytakkOhlNc53OuR1JE0KJbnhUWnlEqPqmQvgtoMxv4TBg5tbq
https://www.facebook.com/1686723514895730/photos/pcb.2550559638512109/2550554561845950/?type=3&__tn__=HH-R&eid=ARDDyFdg-ZMKdsYPyOwk27uG5xBBUAujkcOeoISfZkGD_LDi09mz5qRF6zeUo6O9O8jOmJIH-GMPvGP0&__xts__%5B0%5D=68.ARBm9rD8H4YluCJnwxOqNObA0ue16CCyhSQyme8lE9kUHSU6o9fERyRxOJjqZOsQ1qSlhxq0QLELBOTvBeycGGCg4q5i0yJw-rh0pxUSaWuk4QiUvL3_6BCSXIB3vtHZPT2IcmvXI1clFgSEKjQV_1sExy7M9QHFA9MWcpwao97aNOwNbIhnjIRYsXVQxRgHlbt6Pn37hbQixZIJWcKHCUOQ_peBHL7L3lonAcwyrQrYXXs9xyBRg3yHeVijt-lDd6DNDx5kVACu6flRpZOL5GxolTN0knt7l0cyJNhkDfiytakkOhlNc53OuR1JE0KJbnhUWnlEqPqmQvgtoMxv4TBg5tbq
https://www.facebook.com/1686723514895730/photos/pcb.2550559638512109/2550554601845946/?type=3&__tn__=HH-R&eid=ARB5-RlgOFGxfka8pqtF5JHfRPp_tHQIsV8NZ-gw9QqDF59pauen9pcY0xlgFeT-jtsAd_gB-16IvkAV&__xts__%5B0%5D=68.ARBm9rD8H4YluCJnwxOqNObA0ue16CCyhSQyme8lE9kUHSU6o9fERyRxOJjqZOsQ1qSlhxq0QLELBOTvBeycGGCg4q5i0yJw-rh0pxUSaWuk4QiUvL3_6BCSXIB3vtHZPT2IcmvXI1clFgSEKjQV_1sExy7M9QHFA9MWcpwao97aNOwNbIhnjIRYsXVQxRgHlbt6Pn37hbQixZIJWcKHCUOQ_peBHL7L3lonAcwyrQrYXXs9xyBRg3yHeVijt-lDd6DNDx5kVACu6flRpZOL5GxolTN0knt7l0cyJNhkDfiytakkOhlNc53OuR1JE0KJbnhUWnlEqPqmQvgtoMxv4TBg5tbq


Department of Public Works 

 January 15th 2020 to February 7th 2020 

Council Report 

Parks & Beach 

We removed a concrete structure at the park. I believe it used to be the foundation for a flag pole? Several 

damaged picnic tables were repaired as well. 

Streets 

We are still repairing potholes as they surface but with the lack of frost in the ground, it hasn’t been bad yet. We 

cleared the sediment and debris from several hundred feet of ditch line on the gravel portion of Bonanza Road and 

reestablished proper drainage. 

Water 

We removed the aeration motor from water treatment plant #1 and sent it to be rebuilt. The guys have been 

cleaning water main valve boxes and exercising the valves. They spent a couple of days with a metal locator 

looking for shut off valves to a few homes that we have been unable to locate. They have been successful in 

locating several and have also cleared a few lawns of any and all foreign metal objects! 

DPW 

We installed new motion security lights inside of the DPW buildings. With this lighting, if someone were to break in 

after dark, we will be able to clearly see them on the security cameras. Additional storage racks in the cold storage 

building were built and we’ve spent some nasty days inside doing a little house cleaning and reorganizing. Another 

couple of patches were made to the roof of the cold storage building. The 12’ snow plow we ordered a few months 

ago finally arrived and I’m hopeful we don’t need it any time soon! We have plowed only three times this winter 

but due to minor snow/ice events, we’ve had to salt the streets several times. Still yet, we’ve only used 30 tons of 

salt so far. This is low compared to the normal 60 to 70 tons used by now. We made some structural steel repairs 

to the interior of the street sweeper dump box.  

Purchase Recommendation  

None at this time. 

Additional Comments 

None at this time. 

 



CHECK REGISTER FOR VILLAGE OF LAKE ODESSA 1/3Page: 02/12/2020 11:05 AM
User: PEARL
DB: Lake Odessa Village

CHECK DATE FROM 01/01/2020 - 01/31/2020

AmountVendor NameCheckBankCheck Date

Bank ARTS 

128.00 KAREN BANKS3099ARTS01/23/2020
175.00 MICHIGAN FESTIVALS AND EVENTS ASSOC3100ARTS01/23/2020
25.00 VERONICA MARKELL3101ARTS01/23/2020
99.63 VERIZON WIRELESS3102ARTS01/23/2020

260.00 WEST MI TOURIST ASSOC3103ARTS01/23/2020

ARTS TOTALS:

687.63 Total of 5 Disbursements:

0.00 Less 0 Void Checks:
687.63 Total of 5 Checks:

Bank DDA 6015 DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

119.52 LAKEWOOD NEWS1437DDA01/14/2020

DDA TOTALS:

119.52 Total of 1 Disbursements:

0.00 Less 0 Void Checks:
119.52 Total of 1 Checks:

Bank GEN 1447 GENERAL FUND

526.60 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, INC.40803GEN01/03/2020
240.00 KATHY'S CLEANING40804GEN01/03/2020
174.77 KIMBALL MIDWEST40805GEN01/03/2020

2,960.56 OLD DOMINION BRUSH 40806GEN01/03/2020
12.16 LAKE ODESSA PARTS PLUS40807GEN01/03/2020
60.00 STEVENS SIGNS & DESIGNS40808GEN01/03/2020
12.88 VILLAGE TRUE VALUE LUMBER40809GEN01/03/2020

147.36 VERIZON WIRELESS40810GEN01/03/2020
125.70 WOW!  BUSINESS40811GEN01/03/2020
879.49 WEX BANK40812GEN01/03/2020
194.57 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, INC.40813GEN01/09/2020
25.00 CHROUCH COMMUNICATIONS, INC.40814GEN01/09/2020

2,216.52 CONSUMERS ENERGY40815GEN01/09/2020
119.30 JEANNE VANDERSLOOT40816GEN01/09/2020

1,086.21 JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL40817GEN01/09/2020
73.25 LAKEWOOD WASTEWATER AUTHORITY40818GEN01/09/2020

800.00 NEOFUNDS BY NEOPOST40819GEN01/09/2020
8.78 VILLAGE TRUE VALUE LUMBER40820GEN01/09/2020

334.74 JOHNSON CONTROLS SECURITY SOLUTIONS40821GEN01/09/2020
431.82 YOUNG IONIA40822GEN01/09/2020

2,353.96 BLUE CROSS BLUE SHIELD OF MICHIGAN40823GEN01/14/2020
46.96 CONSUMERS ENERGY40824GEN01/14/2020

459.47 THE SBAM PLAN40825GEN01/14/2020
2,832.00 ZUERCHER TECHNOLOGIES, LLC40826GEN01/14/2020

884.00 CONSUMERS ENERGY40827GEN01/17/2020
1,406.00 DICKINSON WRIGHT PLLC40828GEN01/17/2020

149.99 FAMILY FARM & HOME - CHARLOTTE40829GEN01/17/2020
135.00 KDP RETIREMENT PLAN SVCS, INC40830GEN01/17/2020
93.40 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, INC.40831GEN01/21/2020

634.11 CARDMEMBER SERVICE40832GEN01/21/2020
91.25 WOW!  BUSINESS40833GEN01/21/2020
67.41 WOW!  BUSINESS40834GEN01/21/2020
73.53 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, INC.40835GEN01/23/2020

204.62 MENARDS-IONIA40836GEN01/23/2020



CHECK REGISTER FOR VILLAGE OF LAKE ODESSA 2/3Page: 02/12/2020 11:05 AM
User: PEARL
DB: Lake Odessa Village

CHECK DATE FROM 01/01/2020 - 01/31/2020

AmountVendor NameCheckBankCheck Date

2,933.90 MILLER, JOHNSON, SNELL & CUMMISKEY40837GEN01/23/2020
270.98 VERIZON WIRELESS40838GEN01/23/2020
125.02 WOW!  BUSINESS40839GEN01/23/2020
57.52 NAPA OF IONIA40840GEN01/23/2020

162.00 CMP DISTRIBUTORS, INC40841GEN01/27/2020

GEN TOTALS:

23,410.83 Total of 39 Disbursements:

0.00 Less 0 Void Checks:
23,410.83 Total of 39 Checks:

Bank HWY 6659 GENERAL HWY

93.37 BLUE CROSS BLUE SHIELD OF MICHIGAN1956HWY01/14/2020
68.79 THE SBAM PLAN1957HWY01/14/2020

847.50 GEI CONSULTANTS1958HWY01/23/2020

HWY TOTALS:

1,009.66 Total of 3 Disbursements:

0.00 Less 0 Void Checks:
1,009.66 Total of 3 Checks:

Bank LOC 6646 LOCAL STREETS

27.76 BLUE CROSS BLUE SHIELD OF MICHIGAN2218LOC01/14/2020
10.05 THE SBAM PLAN2219LOC01/14/2020

847.50 GEI CONSULTANTS2220LOC01/23/2020

LOC TOTALS:

885.31 Total of 3 Disbursements:

0.00 Less 0 Void Checks:
885.31 Total of 3 Checks:

Bank MAJ 6633 MAJOR STREETS

47.79 BLUE CROSS BLUE SHIELD OF MICHIGAN2285MAJ01/14/2020
10.20 THE SBAM PLAN2286MAJ01/14/2020

1,130.00 GEI CONSULTANTS2287MAJ01/23/2020

MAJ TOTALS:

1,187.99 Total of 3 Disbursements:

0.00 Less 0 Void Checks:
1,187.99 Total of 3 Checks:

Bank WATER 6620 WATER

286.00 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, INC.4793WATER01/03/2020
770.74 BADGER METER 4794WATER01/03/2020
257.27 ETNA SUPPLY - GRAND RAPIDS4795WATER01/03/2020
150.00 H2O COMPLIANCE SERVICES INC.4796WATER01/03/2020
180.00 STATE OF MICHIGAN4797WATER01/03/2020

2,544.61 HOMEWORKS4798WATER01/03/2020
56.20 VILLAGE TRUE VALUE LUMBER4799WATER01/03/2020
34.59 VERIZON WIRELESS4800WATER01/03/2020
62.85 WOW!  BUSINESS4801WATER01/03/2020

323.05 WEX BANK4802WATER01/03/2020
0.00 SHERWIN WILLIAMS22(S)WATER01/06/2020



CHECK REGISTER FOR VILLAGE OF LAKE ODESSA 3/3Page: 02/12/2020 11:05 AM
User: PEARL
DB: Lake Odessa Village

CHECK DATE FROM 01/01/2020 - 01/31/2020

AmountVendor NameCheckBankCheck Date

356.04 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, INC.4803WATER01/09/2020
75.02 AT&T4804WATER01/09/2020

273.83 KCI 4805WATER01/09/2020
103.93 MENARDS-IONIA4806WATER01/09/2020

3,573.83 BLUE CROSS BLUE SHIELD OF MICHIGAN4807WATER01/14/2020
388.38 ELHORN ENGINEERING COMPANY4808WATER01/14/2020
865.44 JERRY'S TIRE4809WATER01/14/2020
284.51 NAPA OF IONIA4810WATER01/14/2020
292.37 THE SBAM PLAN4811WATER01/14/2020
22.97 VILLAGE TRUE VALUE LUMBER4812WATER01/14/2020
90.98 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, INC.4813WATER01/17/2020

1,486.77 CONSUMERS ENERGY4814WATER01/17/2020
135.00 KDP RETIREMENT PLAN SVCS, INC4815WATER01/17/2020

2.91 LAKE ODESSA PARTS PLUS4816WATER01/17/2020
2,040.00 PEERLESS MIDWEST, INC.4817WATER01/17/2020
5,620.64 SLC METER, LLC4818WATER01/17/2020

141.50 SMITH WELDING & REPAIR4819WATER01/17/2020
9.73 VILLAGE TRUE VALUE LUMBER4820WATER01/17/2020

98.90 CARDMEMBER SERVICE4821WATER01/21/2020
44.00 CITY OF IONIA4822WATER01/21/2020

149.22 VERIZON WIRELESS4823WATER01/23/2020
62.51 WOW!  BUSINESS4824WATER01/23/2020

2,825.00 GEI CONSULTANTS4825WATER01/23/2020
3,264.08 HOMEWORKS4826WATER01/27/2020

WATER TOTALS:

26,872.87 Total of 35 Disbursements:

0.00 Less 0 Void Checks:
26,872.87 Total of 35 Checks:

REPORT TOTALS:

54,173.81 Total of 89 Disbursements:

0.00 Less 0 Void Checks:
54,173.81 Total of 89 Checks:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR LAKE ODESSA VILLAGE 1/8Page:02/12/2020 10:40 AM
User: PEARL
DB: Lake Odessa Village

PERIOD ENDING 01/31/2020

% BDGT
USED

AVAILABLE
BALANCE

NORM (ABNORM)
2019-20

AMENDED BUDGET

2019-20
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

YTD BALANCE
01/31/2020

NORM (ABNORM)

END BALANCE
02/28/2019

NORM (ABNORM)DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 101 - GENERAL FUND
Revenues

87.61 104,051.11 839,710.00 799,710.00 735,658.89 812,740.15 UnclassifiedUNCLASSIFIED

87.61 104,051.11 839,710.00 799,710.00 735,658.89 812,740.15 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
88.06 9,801.02 82,075.00 69,050.00 72,273.98 64,917.62 GOVERNING BODY101
65.50 17,333.95 50,240.00 50,240.00 32,906.05 17,838.84 MANAGERS172
33.78 19,243.41 29,060.00 29,060.00 9,816.59 23,347.99 PAGE MEMORIAL BUILDING265
63.08 131,311.28 355,640.00 355,640.00 224,328.72 207,291.62 POLICE301
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 FIRE336

75.45 41,704.57 169,844.45 203,360.00 128,139.88 220,171.67 PUBLIC WORKS441
68.27 11,974.32 37,740.00 37,740.00 25,765.68 32,475.89 PUBLIC UTILITIES-STREET LIGHTING448
95.53 151.82 3,400.00 3,400.00 3,248.18 4,133.78 WATER/SEWER536
83.75 1,246.70 7,670.00 7,670.00 6,423.30 7,010.46 ZONING722
31.80 3,751.00 5,500.00 5,500.00 1,749.00 4,612.31 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT728
87.03 4,936.48 38,050.00 38,050.00 33,113.52 27,956.06 PARKS AND RECREATION751
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 LIBRARY790
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 999

69.01 241,454.55 779,219.45 799,710.00 537,764.90 609,756.24 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

327.15 (137,403.44)60,490.55 0.00 197,893.99 202,983.91 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

69.01 241,454.55 779,219.45 799,710.00 537,764.90 609,756.24 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
87.61 104,051.11 839,710.00 799,710.00 735,658.89 812,740.15 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 101 - GENERAL FUND:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR LAKE ODESSA VILLAGE 2/8Page:02/12/2020 10:40 AM
User: PEARL
DB: Lake Odessa Village

PERIOD ENDING 01/31/2020

% BDGT
USED

AVAILABLE
BALANCE

NORM (ABNORM)
2019-20

AMENDED BUDGET

2019-20
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

YTD BALANCE
01/31/2020

NORM (ABNORM)

END BALANCE
02/28/2019

NORM (ABNORM)DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 202 - MAJOR STREET FUND
Revenues

95.28 8,839.22 187,190.00 182,060.00 178,350.78 173,904.95 UnclassifiedUNCLASSIFIED

95.28 8,839.22 187,190.00 182,060.00 178,350.78 173,904.95 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
90.19 18,567.89 189,230.00 184,100.00 170,662.11 137,977.73 STREET DEPT (ACT 51)449
87.57 528.24 4,250.00 4,250.00 3,721.76 3,893.87 MAINTENANCE / CONSTRUCTION450
60.96 1,448.26 3,710.00 3,710.00 2,261.74 7,584.94 SNOW REMOVAL869

89.58 20,544.39 197,190.00 192,060.00 176,645.61 149,456.54 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

17.05 (11,705.17)(10,000.00)(10,000.00)1,705.17 24,448.41 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

89.58 20,544.39 197,190.00 192,060.00 176,645.61 149,456.54 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
95.28 8,839.22 187,190.00 182,060.00 178,350.78 173,904.95 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 202 - MAJOR STREET FUND:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR LAKE ODESSA VILLAGE 3/8Page:02/12/2020 10:40 AM
User: PEARL
DB: Lake Odessa Village

PERIOD ENDING 01/31/2020

% BDGT
USED

AVAILABLE
BALANCE

NORM (ABNORM)
2019-20

AMENDED BUDGET

2019-20
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

YTD BALANCE
01/31/2020

NORM (ABNORM)

END BALANCE
02/28/2019

NORM (ABNORM)DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 203 - LOCAL STREET FUND
Revenues

75.33 16,033.80 65,000.00 65,000.00 48,966.20 160,221.97 UnclassifiedUNCLASSIFIED

75.33 16,033.80 65,000.00 65,000.00 48,966.20 160,221.97 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
48.73 16,021.69 31,250.00 31,250.00 15,228.31 25,063.18 STREET DEPT (ACT 51)449
90.91 595.48 6,550.00 6,550.00 5,954.52 6,229.80 MAINTENANCE / CONSTRUCTION450
21.83 2,900.21 3,710.00 3,710.00 809.79 3,068.89 SNOW REMOVAL869

52.98 19,517.38 41,510.00 41,510.00 21,992.62 34,361.87 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

114.83 (3,483.58)23,490.00 23,490.00 26,973.58 125,860.10 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

52.98 19,517.38 41,510.00 41,510.00 21,992.62 34,361.87 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
75.33 16,033.80 65,000.00 65,000.00 48,966.20 160,221.97 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 203 - LOCAL STREET FUND:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR LAKE ODESSA VILLAGE 4/8Page:02/12/2020 10:40 AM
User: PEARL
DB: Lake Odessa Village

PERIOD ENDING 01/31/2020

% BDGT
USED

AVAILABLE
BALANCE

NORM (ABNORM)
2019-20

AMENDED BUDGET

2019-20
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

YTD BALANCE
01/31/2020

NORM (ABNORM)

END BALANCE
02/28/2019

NORM (ABNORM)DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 204 - GENERAL HWY
Revenues

95.02 11,389.44 228,900.00 228,900.00 217,510.56 216,090.74 UnclassifiedUNCLASSIFIED

95.02 11,389.44 228,900.00 228,900.00 217,510.56 216,090.74 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 BALANCE SHEET / GENERAL000

90.88 13,865.39 152,100.00 152,100.00 138,234.61 128,589.73 HIGHWAYS, STREETS (NOT ACT 51)446
90.37 2,359.59 24,500.00 24,500.00 22,140.41 23,082.84 MAINTENANCE / CONSTRUCTION450

90.81 16,224.98 176,600.00 176,600.00 160,375.02 151,672.57 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

109.25 (4,835.54)52,300.00 52,300.00 57,135.54 64,418.17 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

90.81 16,224.98 176,600.00 176,600.00 160,375.02 151,672.57 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
95.02 11,389.44 228,900.00 228,900.00 217,510.56 216,090.74 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 204 - GENERAL HWY:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR LAKE ODESSA VILLAGE 5/8Page:02/12/2020 10:40 AM
User: PEARL
DB: Lake Odessa Village

PERIOD ENDING 01/31/2020

% BDGT
USED

AVAILABLE
BALANCE

NORM (ABNORM)
2019-20

AMENDED BUDGET

2019-20
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

YTD BALANCE
01/31/2020

NORM (ABNORM)

END BALANCE
02/28/2019

NORM (ABNORM)DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 248 - DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
Revenues

60.17 12,557.87 31,525.00 31,525.00 18,967.13 30,823.22 UnclassifiedUNCLASSIFIED

60.17 12,557.87 31,525.00 31,525.00 18,967.13 30,823.22 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
30.72 19,968.94 28,825.00 28,825.00 8,856.06 8,813.79 DDA275

30.72 19,968.94 28,825.00 28,825.00 8,856.06 8,813.79 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

374.48 (7,411.07)2,700.00 2,700.00 10,111.07 22,009.43 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

30.72 19,968.94 28,825.00 28,825.00 8,856.06 8,813.79 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
60.17 12,557.87 31,525.00 31,525.00 18,967.13 30,823.22 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 248 - DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR LAKE ODESSA VILLAGE 6/8Page:02/12/2020 10:40 AM
User: PEARL
DB: Lake Odessa Village

PERIOD ENDING 01/31/2020

% BDGT
USED

AVAILABLE
BALANCE

NORM (ABNORM)
2019-20

AMENDED BUDGET

2019-20
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

YTD BALANCE
01/31/2020

NORM (ABNORM)

END BALANCE
02/28/2019

NORM (ABNORM)DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 290 - ARTS
Revenues

106.59 (624.00)9,472.00 9,472.00 10,096.00 24,069.00 UnclassifiedUNCLASSIFIED

106.59 (624.00)9,472.00 9,472.00 10,096.00 24,069.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
124.02 (2,275.36)9,472.00 9,472.00 11,747.36 15,991.60 ARTS752

124.02 (2,275.36)9,472.00 9,472.00 11,747.36 15,991.60 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

100.00 1,651.36 0.00 0.00 (1,651.36)8,077.40 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

124.02 (2,275.36)9,472.00 9,472.00 11,747.36 15,991.60 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
106.59 (624.00)9,472.00 9,472.00 10,096.00 24,069.00 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 290 - ARTS:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR LAKE ODESSA VILLAGE 7/8Page:02/12/2020 10:40 AM
User: PEARL
DB: Lake Odessa Village

PERIOD ENDING 01/31/2020

% BDGT
USED

AVAILABLE
BALANCE

NORM (ABNORM)
2019-20

AMENDED BUDGET

2019-20
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

YTD BALANCE
01/31/2020

NORM (ABNORM)

END BALANCE
02/28/2019

NORM (ABNORM)DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 291 - CAR SHOW
Revenues

113.80 (414.63)3,005.00 3,005.00 3,419.63 3,223.50 UnclassifiedUNCLASSIFIED

113.80 (414.63)3,005.00 3,005.00 3,419.63 3,223.50 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
140.60 (1,219.90)3,005.00 3,005.00 4,224.90 3,384.82 CAR SHOW753

140.60 (1,219.90)3,005.00 3,005.00 4,224.90 3,384.82 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

100.00 805.27 0.00 0.00 (805.27)(161.32)NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

140.60 (1,219.90)3,005.00 3,005.00 4,224.90 3,384.82 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
113.80 (414.63)3,005.00 3,005.00 3,419.63 3,223.50 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 291 - CAR SHOW:



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR LAKE ODESSA VILLAGE 8/8Page:02/12/2020 10:40 AM
User: PEARL
DB: Lake Odessa Village

PERIOD ENDING 01/31/2020

% BDGT
USED

AVAILABLE
BALANCE

NORM (ABNORM)
2019-20

AMENDED BUDGET

2019-20
ORIGINAL

BUDGET

YTD BALANCE
01/31/2020

NORM (ABNORM)

END BALANCE
02/28/2019

NORM (ABNORM)DESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 591 - WATER FUND
Revenues

96.23 36,147.49 958,291.45 947,675.00 922,143.96 2,849,043.07 UnclassifiedUNCLASSIFIED

96.23 36,147.49 958,291.45 947,675.00 922,143.96 2,849,043.07 TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
84.83 129,393.96 852,941.89 822,105.00 723,547.93 825,888.02 WATER/SEWER536

84.83 129,393.96 852,941.89 822,105.00 723,547.93 825,888.02 TOTAL EXPENDITURES

188.51 (93,246.47)105,349.56 125,570.00 198,596.03 2,023,155.05 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

84.83 129,393.96 852,941.89 822,105.00 723,547.93 825,888.02 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
96.23 36,147.49 958,291.45 947,675.00 922,143.96 2,849,043.07 TOTAL REVENUES

Fund 591 - WATER FUND:

209.09 (255,628.64)234,330.11 194,060.00 489,958.75 2,470,791.15 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES

78.76 443,608.94 2,088,763.34 2,073,287.00 1,645,154.40 1,799,325.45 TOTAL EXPENDITURES - ALL FUNDS
91.91 187,980.30 2,323,093.45 2,267,347.00 2,135,113.15 4,270,116.60 TOTAL REVENUES - ALL FUNDS



Lake Odessa Village Council 
Ionia County, Michigan 

 
 
Trustee________________________, supported by Trustee_________________________, made a 
motion to adopt the following resolution: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-06 
 
APPROVING, AUTHORIZING, AND DIRECTING THE VILLAGE PRESIDENT AND THE VILLAGE 

MANAGER TO SIGN A LETTER OF ENGAGEMENT FROM WALKER, FLUKE, AND SHELDON 
PLC FOR AUDITING SERVICES FOR THE VILLAGE OF LAKE ODESSA 

 
WHEREAS, the Village of Lake Odessa has historically utilized the services of Walker, Fluke, and Sheldon PLC 
for its required annual financial audit: and 
 
WHEREAS, Walker, Fluke, and Sheldon PLC has sent the Village a “Letter of Engagement” for auditing 
services for the 2019-2020 fiscal year. A copy of this letter is attached as “Exhibit A;” and 
 
WHEREAS, the attached letter of engagement sets out the terms and costs for this annual audit 
and requires the signatures of the Village President and the Village Manager. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED: 
 

1. The Lake Odessa Village Council approves, authorizes, and directs the Village President and the Village 
Manager to accept the auditing services provided by Walker, Fluke, and Sheldon PLC via signature to the 
attached “Letter of Engagement.” 

2. All resolutions and parts of resolutions are, to the extent of any conflict with this resolution, rescinded. 
 
Ayes: 
 

Nays: 
 

Absent: 
 

Abstain: 
 

RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED. 
 
Dated: February 17, 2020      _______________________________ 
                    Pearl Ward, Village Clerk/ Treasurer 















Lake Odessa Village Council 
Ionia County, Michigan 

 
 
Trustee________________________, supported by Trustee_________________________, made a 
motion to adopt the following resolution: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-07 
 

A RESOLUTION RECOGNIZING THE LAKE ODESSA CIVIC AND AGRICULTURAL 
ASSOCIATION AS A NONPROFIT ORGANIZATION OPERATING IN THE COMMUNITY FOR THE 

PURPOSE OF OBTAINING CHARITABLE GAMING LICENSES 
 
WHEREAS, the Lake Odessa Civic and Agricultural Association – located at 1640 Fourth Avenue, Lake Odessa, 
Michigan 48849 -- is a non-profit organization that has historically hosted and produced the annual “Lake Odessa 
Fair” in the community of Lake Odessa, Michigan: and 
 
WHEREAS, the Lake Odessa Civic and Agricultural Association is filing an application with the State of 
Michigan’s Bureau of Lottery/ Charitable Gaming Division to hold a raffle, with a drawing date of June 27, 2020. 
A copy of this application is attached as “Exhibit A;” and 
 
WHEREAS, the application for a charitable gaming license requires a copy of a resolution passed by the local 
body of government stating that the applying organization is a recognized non-profit organization within the 
community. A copy of the form resolution from the Charitable Gaming Division of the State Lottery Bureau is 
attached as “Exhibit B.” 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED: 
 

1. The Lake Odessa Village Council recognizes the Lake Odessa Civic and Agricultural Association as a 
non-profit organization within the community for the purpose of obtaining charitable gaming licenses and 
authorizes the Village Clerk to sign and submit the required resolution. 

2. All resolutions and parts of resolutions are, to the extent of any conflict with this resolution, rescinded. 
 
Ayes: 
 

Nays: 
 

Absent: 
 

Abstain: 
 

RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED. 
 
Dated: February 17, 2020      _______________________________ 
                    Pearl Ward, Village Clerk/ Treasurer 











Lake Odessa Village Council 
Ionia County, Michigan 

 
 
Trustee________________________, supported by Trustee_________________________, made a 
motion to adopt the following resolution: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-08 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE ANNUAL SUPPORT OF THE IONIA COUNTY ECONOMIC 
ALLIANCE (ICEA) IN THE AMOUNT OF $1,924.00 

 
WHEREAS, the Village of Lake Odessa recognizes the need for regional efforts with regard to economic 
development for both the Village of Lake Odessa and the Ionia County region: and 
 
WHEREAS, since 2011, the Ionia County Economic Alliance (ICEA) and the Right Place have worked on 
region-wide economic development efforts in the Ionia County region, and has generated $186.5 million in new 
capital investment and 740 new and retained jobs in Ionia County; and 
 
WHEREAS, the ICEA sent a letter to the Village of Lake Odessa, requesting operating support in the amount of 
$1,924.00. A copy of the request letter is attached as “Exhibit A.” 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED: 
 

1. The Lake Odessa Village Council approves the annual support to the Ionia County Economic Alliance in 
the amount of $1,924.00. 

2. All resolutions and parts of resolutions are, to the extent of any conflict with this resolution, rescinded. 
 
Ayes: 
 

Nays: 
 

Absent: 
 

Abstain: 
 

RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED. 
 
Dated: February 17, 2020      _______________________________ 
                    Pearl Ward, Village Clerk/ Treasurer 







Lake Odessa Village Council 
Ionia County, Michigan 

 
 

Trustee _______________________, supported by Trustee ___________________, made a 
motion to adopt the following resolution: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-09 
 
APPROVING THE VILLAGE PRESIDENT’S APPOINTMENT LIST AS PRESENTED 

FOR VARIOUS VILLAGE POSTS, BOARDS, AND COMMISSIONS 
 
WHEREAS, per Michigan PA 3 of 1895 (“General Law Village Act”) (62.2)(Sec.2)(1): 

 
“The president may nominate and the council appoint such officers as shall be 
provided for by resolution or ordinance of the council. The council may provide 
by ordinance or resolution for the appointment of other officers whose election or 
appointment is not specifically provided for in this act, as the council considers 
necessary for the execution of the powers granted by this act. The powers and 
duties of such officers shall be prescribed by the council. The council may require 
that the officers perform their duties faithfully and that proper measures be taken 
to punish neglect of duty by an officer,” and; 

 
WHEREAS, the Lake Odessa Village President, the Honorable Karen L. Banks, has presented a 
list of appointments for various posts, boards, and commissions for the Village of Lake Odessa. 
A copy of this appointment list is attached as “Exhibit A.” 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The Village Council approves the appointment list presented by the Village President as 
presented in “Exhibit A.” 
2.  All resolutions and parts of resolutions, insofar as they conflict with the provisions of this 
resolution are rescinded.  

 
Ayes:   
 
Nays:   
 
Absent: 
 
Abstain: 
 
RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED. 
 
Dated: February 17, 2020    __________________________________ 



        Pearl Ward, Village Clerk/ Treasurer 
 





Lake Odessa Village Council 
Ionia County, Michigan 

 
 
Trustee________________________, supported by Trustee_________________________, made a 
motion to adopt the following resolution: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-11 
 

APPROVING THE ESTIMATE AND BID LETTING FOR THE PROPOSED PEARL, PLEASANT, 
IONIA, AND EMERSON STREET IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 

 
WHEREAS, the Village of Lake Odessa owns and maintains streets within the Village limits; and 
 
WHEREAS, from time to time, Village streets require maintenance, improvements, and rebuilding due to the age 
of the street; and 
 
WHEREAS, Village staff has determined that portions of Pearl, Pleasant, Ionia, and Emerson streets are in need 
of being rebuilt to ensure continued safety. A copy of the proposed project area is attached as “Exhibit A;” and 
 
WHEREAS, Village staff has been working with engineers from GEI Consultants to obtain cost estimates for the 
improvement of portions of these streets; and 
 
WHEREAS, GEI Consultants has prepared estimates for this work (attached as “Exhibit B”); and 
 
WHEREAS, Village staff recommends that these estimates be accepted by Council and that this project be let out 
for bid so that these improvements can be performed during the Spring/ Summer of 2020. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED: 
 

1. The Lake Odessa Village Council approves the provided estimate for the proposed street improvement 
work to be performed on the streets of Pearl, Pleasant, Ionia, and Emerson as outlined in Exhibit A. 

2. The Lake Odessa Village Council approves the bid letting of this proposed project using the cost 
estimates as provided. 

3. All resolutions and parts of resolutions are, to the extent of any conflict with this resolution, rescinded. 
 
Ayes: 
 

Nays: 
 

Absent: 
 

Abstain: 
 

RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED. 



 
Dated: January 21, 2020     _______________________________ 
                    Pearl Ward, Village Clerk/ Treasurer 











Lake Odessa Village Council 
Ionia County, Michigan 

 
 

Trustee _______________________, supported by Trustee ___________________, made a 
motion to adopt the following resolution: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-12 
 

ADOPTION OF THE PROPOSED FISCAL YEAR 2020-2021 BUDGET FOR THE 
VILLAGE OF LAKE ODESSA 

 
WHEREAS, Village staff has prepared a budget for the Village of Lake Odessa for the 2020-2021 
fiscal year. A copy of the budget is attached as “Exhibit A;” and 
 
WHEREAS, anticipated revenues for all Village funds in the 2020-2021 fiscal year will total 
$2,450,234.00; and 
 
WHEREAS, anticipated expenditures for all Village funds in the 2020-2021 fiscal year will total 
$3,389,114.00; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Village of Lake Odessa maintains appropriate, adequate, and healthy fund 
balances in each fund as demonstrated in Exhibit A; and 
 
WHEREAS, a public hearing with regard to said budget was duly noticed and held by the Lake 
Odessa Village Council on February 17, 2020, in accordance with Michigan statute, and 
opportunity was given to all present to comment upon the same; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Village Council is now satisfied that the Fiscal Year 2020-2021 budget as 
originally proposed is reasonable and in the best interest of the Village of Lake Odessa. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The Village Council for the Village of Lake Odessa approves and hereby adopts the 
aforementioned budget, subject to such changes as may subsequently be found to be necessary 
by the Village Council as a result of changes in anticipated receipts and/or unanticipated 
changes in expenditures which are either unavoidable or determined by the Village Council to 
be in the best interest of the Village, and which can be met out of surplus funds or a reallocation 
of budget expenditures. 
2.  That it is the expressed intent of the Village Council that the aforementioned budget shall 
be adopted and managed by appropriation accounts. 
3.  That this budget shall be effective on March 1, 2020 and will end on February 28, 2021. 
2.  All resolutions and parts of resolutions, insofar as they conflict with the provisions of this 
resolution are rescinded.  

 



Ayes:   
 
Nays:   
 
Absent: 
 
Abstain: 
 
RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED. 
 
CERTIFICATION 

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of Resolution 2020-12, adopted by 
the Lake Odessa Village Council at a regular meeting held on February 17, 2020, the original of 
which is on file in Clerk/ Treasurer’s office and available to the public pursuant to the required 
statutory procedure. 
 
Dated: February 17, 2020    __________________________________ 
        Pearl Ward, Village Clerk/ Treasurer 
 

































































Lake Odessa Village Council 
Ionia County, Michigan 

 
 

Trustee _______________________, supported by Trustee ___________________, made a 
motion to adopt the following resolution: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-13 
 

APPROVAL AND ADOPTION OF THE VILLAGE OF LAKE ODESSA GENERAL 
APPROPRIATIONS ACT 

 
WHEREAS, each year, the Village of Lake Odessa establishes a General Appropriations Act for 
the Village of Lake Odessa; to define the powers and duties of the officers of the Village of Lake 
Odessa in relation to the administration of the budget; and to provide remedies for refusal or 
neglect to comply with the requirements of this resolution. 

Section 1: Title 
This resolution shall be known as the Village of Lake Odessa General Appropriations Act. 
 
Section 2: Chief Administrative Officer 
The Lake Odessa Village Manager shall be the Chief Administrative Officer and shall perform the 
duties of the Chief Administrative Officer enumerated in this act. In the absence of a Village 
Manager, the Village President shall perform the duties of the Chief Administrative Officer 
enumerated in this act. 
 
Section 3: Fiscal Officer 
The Lake Odessa Clerk/Treasurer shall be the Fiscal Officer and shall perform the duties of the 
Fiscal Officer enumerated in this act. 
 
Section 4: Public Hearing on the Budget 
Pursuant to MCL 141.412, notice of public hearing on the proposed Fiscal Year 2020-2021 budget 
for the Village of Lake Odessa was published in a newspaper of general circulation, and a public 
hearing on said proposed budget was held by the Lake Odessa Village Council on February 17, 
2020. 
 
Section 5: Estimated Revenues 
Estimated Village revenues for Fiscal Year 2020-2021, including a general operating millage of 
10.6475, a street repair millage of 4.7718, and various miscellaneous revenues shall total 
$2,450,234.00. 
 
Section 6: Millage Levy 
The Lake Odessa Village Council shall cause to be levied and collected the general property tax 
on all real and personal property within the Village upon the current tax roll an amount equal to 
15.4193 mills, including a general operating millage of 10.6475 and a street repair millage of 
4.7718. 



 
Section 7: Estimated Expenditures 
Estimated expenditures for Fiscal Year 2020-2021 for the activities of the Village shall total 
$3,389,114.00. In accordance with the Village’s policies, a planned expense of accumulated 
reserve funds for purchases of infrastructure and equipment accommodates the difference between 
revenues and expenditures and accounts for a balanced budget. 
 
Section 8: Adoption of Budget by Reference 
The Fiscal Year 2020-21 general fund budget of the Village is hereby adopted by reference, with 
revenues and expenditures as indicated in Sections 5 and 7 above. 
 
Section 9: Adoption of Budget by Account 
The Lake Odessa Village Council adopts the Fiscal Year 2020-21 budget by appropriation account. 
The Village officials responsible for expenditures authorized in the budget may expend Village 
funds up to, but not to exceed, the total appropriation authorized for each appropriation account, 
and may make transfers among the various line items contained therein. However, no transfers of 
appropriations for line items related to wages or salaries may be made without Village Council 
approval by budget amendment. 
 
Section 10: Appropriation not a Mandate to Spend 
Appropriations will be deemed maximum authorizations to incur expenditures. The Fiscal Officer 
shall exercise supervision and control to ensure that expenditures are within appropriations, and 
shall not issue any order for expenditures that exceed appropriations. 
 
Section 11: Transfers 
Transfers of any unencumbered balance, or any portion, in any appropriation account to any other 
appropriation account may not be made without amendment of this resolution; except that the 
Chief Administrative Officer may transfer to the Local Street Fund an amount not to exceed 50% 
of the total appropriation authorized in the Major Street Fund, in accordance with the laws of the 
State of Michigan. The Village Council shall be notified at its next meeting of any such transfer 
made, and reserves the right to modify, amend or nullify any such transfer. Under no circumstances 
may the total general fund budget be changed without prior approval of the Village Council. 
 
Section 12: Periodic Fiscal Reports 
The Fiscal Officer shall make available to the Village Council at the end of each month a report of 
financial operations, including, but not limited to:  
 

a. a summary statement of the actual financial condition of the general fund at the end of 
the previous month; 
 
b. a summary statement showing the receipts and expenditures for the previous month and 
for the current fiscal year to the end of the previous month. 

 
 
 
 



Section 13: Limit on Obligations and Payments 
No obligation shall be incurred against and no payment shall be made from any appropriation 
account unless there is a sufficient balance in the account and sufficient funds are or will be 
available to meet the obligation. 
 
Section 14: Budget Monitoring 
Whenever it appears to the Chief Administrative Officer or the Village Council that the actual and 
probable revenues in any account will be less than the estimated revenues upon which 
appropriations from such account were based, and when it appears that expenditures shall exceed 
an appropriation, the Chief Administrative Officer shall present to the Village Council 
recommendations to prevent expenditures from exceeding available revenues or appropriations for 
the current fiscal year. Such recommendations shall include proposals for reducing appropriations, 
increasing revenues or both. 
 
Section 15: Violations of this Act 
Any obligation incurred or payment authorized in violation of this resolution shall be void and 
shall subject any responsible official(s) or employee(s) to disciplinary action as outlined in 1978 
PA 621. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The Village Council for the Village of Lake Odessa approves and hereby adopts the 
proposed General Appropriations Act as outlined above. 
2.  All resolutions and parts of resolutions, insofar as they conflict with the provisions of this 
resolution are rescinded.  

 
Ayes:   
 
Nays:   
 
Absent: 
 
Abstain: 
 
RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED. 
 
CERTIFICATION 

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of Resolution 2020-12, adopted by 
the Lake Odessa Village Council at a regular meeting held on February 17, 2020, the original of 
which is on file in Clerk/ Treasurer’s office and available to the public pursuant to the required 
statutory procedure. 
 
Dated: February 17, 2020    __________________________________ 
        Pearl Ward, Village Clerk/ Treasurer 
 



Lake Odessa Village Council 
Ionia County, Michigan 

 
 

Trustee _______________________, supported by Trustee ___________________, made a 
motion to adopt the following resolution: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-14 
 

APPROVAL AND ADOPTION OF THE VILLAGE OF LAKE ODESSA CAPITAL 
IMPROVEMENT PLAN  

 
WHEREAS, each year, Village of Lake Odessa staff creates and recommends a Capital 
Improvement Plan that is submitted as part of the annual proposed budget; and 

WHEREAS, this plan provides a snapshot of needed and/ or proposed Capital Improvements for 
infrastructure projects and/ or improvements to Village owned assets; and 

WHEREAS, a copy of the proposed Capital Improvement Plan is attached as “Exhibit A” and is 
also included in the Village of Lake Odessa’s proposed budget. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AS FOLLOWS: 
1. The Village of Lake Odessa Council approves and hereby adopts the proposed Capital 
Improvement Plan as attached in Exhibit A. 
2.  All resolutions and parts of resolutions, insofar as they conflict with the provisions of this 
resolution are rescinded.  

 
Ayes:   
 
Nays:   
 
Absent: 
 
Abstain: 
 
RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED. 
 
 
Dated: February 17, 2020    __________________________________ 
        Pearl Ward, Village Clerk/ Treasurer 
 





Lake Odessa Village Council 
Ionia County, Michigan 

 
 

Trustee _______________________, supported by Trustee ___________________, made a 
motion to adopt the following resolution: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2020-15 
 
APPROVAL TO ADOPT THE VILLAGE OF LAKE ODESSA EMPLOYEE DEFERRED 

COMPENSATION PLAN FOR FY 2020-2021 
 
WHEREAS, the Village of Lake Odessa established the Village of Lake Odessa Deferred 
Compensation Plan (the "Plan"), effective April 1, 1986, as restated effective October 15, 2018, 
and approved again by Village Council on February 25, 2019; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Plan is administered by KDP Retirement Plan Services, Inc., and the Summary 
Plan Description is on file at the Village offices; and 
 
WHEREAS, each employee who participates in the Plan and contributes a percentage of their 
compensation to the Plan, the Village will contribute an equal amount up to a maximum of 10 
percent (10%) of said employee's compensation; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Village's fiscal year and the Plan year begins on March 1, 2020 and will end on 
February 28, 2021. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The Village of Lake Odessa Council approves and hereby adopts the proposed Capital 
Improvement Plan as attached in Exhibit A. 
2.   During the 2020-2021 fiscal year (March 1, 2020 to February 28, 2021), for each employee 
who participates in the Plan and contributes a percentage of their compensation to the Plan, the 
Village will contribute an equal amount up to a maximum of ten percent (10%) of said 
employee's compensation. 
3.  All resolutions and parts of resolutions, insofar as they conflict with the provisions of this 
resolution are rescinded.  

 
Ayes:   
 
Nays:   
 
Absent: 
 
Abstain: 
 



RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED. 
 
 
Dated: February 17, 2020    __________________________________ 
        Pearl Ward, Village Clerk/ Treasurer 
 



ChangeNew Amended19-20 Activity19-20 Amended19-20 AdoptedDescriptionGL Number

Batch Add Budget Amendments02/12/2020 02:41 PM
User: PEARL
DB: Lake Odessa Village

1/2Page: 

   24,000.00      420,000.00      424,898.61      396,000.00      396,000.00 CURRENT REAL PROPERTY TAXES             101-000-402.000        
    2,000.00        4,000.00        2,007.00        2,000.00        2,000.00 OFFICE SUPPLIES                         101-101-727.000        

      500.00       12,500.00       12,407.18       12,000.00       12,000.00 DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT                    101-101-828.000        

      800.00        1,300.00        1,286.75          500.00          500.00 MAINTENANCE/REPAIR-EQUIPMENT            101-265-931.002        

    1,000.00        1,500.00        1,382.00          500.00          500.00 MAINTENANCE-LANDSCAPING & GROUNDS       101-265-931.003        

    2,000.00        3,000.00            0.00        1,000.00        1,000.00 HARDWARE                                101-265-980.001        

      500.00        1,000.00          250.00          500.00          500.00 SOFTWARE                                101-265-980.002        

      350.00          750.00          658.51          400.00          400.00 LIFE INSURANCE EXPENSE                  101-301-721.000        

      280.00        1,300.00        1,228.00        1,020.00        1,020.00 VESTS                                   101-301-726.000        

    3,000.00        8,000.00        7,230.95        5,000.00        5,000.00 CONTRACTED SERVICES                     101-301-801.000        

    1,500.00       12,500.00       11,824.88       11,000.00       11,000.00 PART TIME WAGES                         101-441-702.706        

    1,000.00        6,000.00        5,513.86        5,000.00        5,000.00 SUPPLIES                                101-441-728.000        

      100.00          600.00          529.24          500.00          500.00 EDUCATION & TRAINING                    101-441-816.000        

  157,515.55      167,000.00        9,484.45        9,484.45            0.00 CAPITAL OUTLAY-VEHICLES                 101-441-970.002        

      800.00        3,000.00        2,709.11        2,200.00        2,200.00 SEWER EXPENSE                           101-536-938.000        

      400.00        1,600.00        1,515.49        1,200.00        1,200.00 WATER EXPENSE                           101-536-939.000        

      500.00       18,500.00       18,197.88       18,000.00       18,000.00 SWIFTY'S PLACE                          101-751-882.000        

   29,870.00       35,000.00       35,850.63        5,130.00            0.00 MISC REVENUE                            202-000-695.000        

      500.00        3,500.00        3,406.38        3,000.00        3,000.00 SALT/SAND ROADS                         202-449-734.000        

    5,000.00        8,000.00        7,176.10        3,000.00        3,000.00 STREET STRIPING                         202-449-863.000        

       70.00        1,200.00        1,179.05        1,130.00          500.00 STREET SIGNS                            202-449-865.000        

    2,000.00        2,000.00        1,130.00            0.00            0.00 CIP - IONIA, PEARL, PLEASANT, EMERSON   202-449-988.001        

      600.00        1,400.00        1,462.07          800.00          800.00 INTEREST                                203-000-665.000        

      500.00        3,500.00        3,406.36        3,000.00        3,000.00 SALT/SAND ROADS                         203-449-734.000        

   13,000.00      190,000.00      190,421.07      177,000.00      177,000.00 CURRENT REAL PROPERTY TAXES             204-000-402.000        

    1,000.00        1,000.00          847.50            0.00            0.00 CIP - IONIA, PEARL, PLEASANT, EMERSON   204-446-988.001        

      200.00          700.00          586.21          500.00          500.00 STREET ADMIN BENEFITS                   204-450-712.002        

  (12,000.00)      18,000.00       17,967.36       30,000.00       30,000.00 CURRENT REAL PROPERTY TAXES             248-000-402.000        

      800.00        2,300.00        2,282.12        1,500.00        1,500.00 CHRISTMAS DECORATIONS                   248-275-967.002        

    4,778.00        7,000.00        7,229.00        2,222.00        2,222.00 STATE GRANTS                            290-000-539.000        

       40.00          100.00           82.50           60.00           60.00 REFUND/REIMBURSEMENTS                   290-752-724.000        

      100.00          200.00          153.75          100.00          100.00 POSTAGE                                 290-752-740.000        

      100.00          200.00          197.95          100.00          100.00 OPERATING EXPENSE                       290-752-793.000        

      250.00          350.00          332.61          100.00          100.00 CONCESSIONS SUPPLIES                    290-752-798.000        

      200.00          200.00          147.15            0.00            0.00 CREDIT CARD FEES                        290-752-804.000        

       25.00          100.00          100.00           75.00           75.00 RADIOS                                  290-752-851.000        

      325.00          325.00          289.51            0.00            0.00 TELEPHONE                               290-752-852.000        

    2,963.00        5,500.00        5,232.90        2,537.00        2,537.00 ADVERTISING                             290-752-881.000        

       50.00          250.00          252.00          200.00          200.00 PORT A POTTY                            290-752-953.000        

      500.00          500.00          494.25            0.00            0.00 PARK IMPROVEMENTS                       290-752-964.000        

     (500.00)       2,000.00        1,483.25        2,500.00        2,500.00 PROJECT COSTS                           290-752-967.000        

    6,383.55       18,000.00       16,521.19       11,616.45        1,000.00 MISC REVENUE                            591-000-695.000        

   (2,500.00)           0.00            0.00        2,500.00        2,500.00 HYDRANT REPLACEMENT                     591-536-781.000        



ChangeNew Amended19-20 Activity19-20 Amended19-20 AdoptedDescriptionGL Number

Batch Add Budget Amendments02/12/2020 02:41 PM
User: PEARL
DB: Lake Odessa Village

2/2Page: 

   10,000.00       13,500.00       12,786.20        3,500.00       13,500.00 EQUIPMENT LEASE PAYMENT                 591-536-945.000        

   26,779.56       83,000.00       56,220.44       56,220.44            0.00 CAPITAL OUTLAY-VEHICLES                 591-536-970.002        

                                                                                                                                    

                                                                                                                                    

   66,631.55    2,389,725.00    3,963,273.58    2,323,093.45    2,267,347.00                                         Total Revenues:        

  220,648.11    2,309,411.45    1,682,681.08    2,088,763.34    2,073,287.00                                         Total Expenditures:    

 (154,016.56)      80,313.55    2,280,592.50      234,330.11      194,060.00                                         Net of Rev/Exp:        






